
NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting Executive Member for Policy and Resources Decision Day

Date and Time Friday, 16th June, 2017 at 2.00 pm

Place Chute Room, EII Courth South, The Castle, Winchester

Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website.  
The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Filming Protocol available on the County Council’s website.

AGENDA

NON-KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL)

1. GRANTS TO VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS AND OTHER BODIES  
(Pages 3 - 10)

To consider a report of the Director of Transformation and Governance – 
Corporate Services regarding requests received for financial assistance 
from the Policy and Resources grants budget.

2. RURAL DELIVERY: RURAL GRANTS  (Pages 11 - 22)

To consider a report of the Director of Culture, Communities and 
Business Services seeking approval to funding from the Rural Delivery 
Strategy Budget.

3. APPOINTMENTS TO STATUTORY JOINT COMMITTEES AND 
OUTSIDE BODIES  (Pages 23 - 26)

To consider a report of the Director of Transformation and Governance 
on appointments to Statutory Joint Committees and Outside Bodies

4. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

Public Document Pack



To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during the following 
items of business, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present during these items there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information within Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972, and further that in all the circumstances of the 
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information, for the reasons set out in the reports.

NON-KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL)

5. SCHEDULE OF ROUTINE TRANSACTIONS  (Pages 27 - 48)

To consider an exempt report of the Director of Culture, Communities 
and Business Services on proposed routine transactions.

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING:
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance.

County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses.

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


1

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Policy and Resources

Date of Decision: 16 June 2017

Decision Title: Grants to Voluntary Organisations and Other Bodies 

Report From: Director of Transformation and Governance - Corporate 
Services 

Contact name: Louise Pickford 
Tel: 01962 847355 Email: louise.pickford@hants.gov.uk

1. Executive Summary 

1.1 This report gives details of 3 grant requests received seeking financial assistance 
from the Policy and Resources grants budget. Further details can be found in 
Appendix 2 of the report.

2. Budget Position

2.1 The budget allocation for 2017/18 is £222,000. Commitments made at previous 
meetings totalling £28,000, reduces this figure available at the meeting on 16 June 
2017 to £194,000.

3. Grants Criteria

3.1 A copy of the criteria used for considering grants from the Policy and Resources 
grants budget is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

4. Legal Implications

4.1 Subject to certain restrictions, the County Council has the power under Section 1 of 
the Localism Act 2011 to do anything that individuals generally may do including the 
power to give grants.

5. RECOMMENDATION:

5.1 That the recommendations listed within Appendix 2 of this report be approved.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1

mailto:louise.pickford@hants.gov.uk


Integral Appendix A 

2

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Corporate Strategy

Hampshire safer and more secure for all:    Yes

Maximising well-being: Yes

Enhancing our quality of place: Yes

Other Significant Links
Links to previous Member decisions:
Title Reference Date

None

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives 
Title Date

None

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)

Document Location
Application form and correspondence 
received from charity

Director of Transformation and 
Governance - Corporate Services

Page 4



Integral Appendix B

3

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS:

1. Equality Duty
1.1. The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the 

Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited under the Act;

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, 
religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
a) The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 

relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;
b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic 

different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
c) Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 

public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low.

1.2. Equalities Impact Assessment:
The application procedure includes equalities monitoring information as agreed as 
part of the corporate review of grants programmes and procedures. Further 
information may be found on individual requests.

2. Impact on Crime and Disorder:

The proposal in this report aim to improve the wellbeing of Hampshire residents and 
reduce the risk of crime occurring.

3. Climate Change:
There is no significant link to Climate Change as a result of this decision.  

Page 5



Appendix 1

4

FUNDING CRITERIA FOR THE POLICY AND RESOURCES GRANTS

The following criteria should be taken into consideration when preparing a submission for 
funding. They are intended as guidelines and not prescriptive rules:

1. Assistance will be considered only in response to direct applications from properly 
constituted organisations seeking assistance. You must show in your application that 
your organisation is properly and legally organised and has its own bank account.

2. Where appropriate, applications will be referred to the relevant service department (e.g. 
Adult Services, Culture, Communities and Business Services, Children’s Services, etc.) 
for consideration.

3. Preference will be given to applications for specific projects or activities rather than 
general running costs of organisations. These grants are not intended to replace 
shortfalls in service delivery budgets or replace funding for other support you may be 
able to obtain, or that you have obtained from us in the past.

 
4. Grants will not usually be made in respect of applications from the following:-

 District or Parish Councils 
 Government Institutions 
 Schools 
 Overseas and out of County organisations which have no direct Hampshire 

involvement
 Branches or organisations assisted centrally with a sum from the County Council 
 Bodies requesting funds for onward distribution to other charities e.g. mayoral 

appeals, carnivals, fetes, or for their own fundraising events.

5. Applications will not be accepted from political parties or groups affiliated with a political 
party or from lobbying/campaigning organisations.

6. Applications will only be considered from faith groups who can demonstrate their 
facilities are open and used by the local community other than for church related 
activities and then only for works in relation to the Disability Discrimination Act.

7. Requests may be considered from County wide groups (e.g. Guides, Scouts, 
Hampshire County Youth Orchestra) for specific trips, e.g. for an international jamboree 
or cultural tour. Individual requests will not usually be considered.

8. Where possible self-help within organisations should be encouraged and to this end, 
grants are normally a percentage of the sum required to complete the project. 

9. As a general rule, grants in excess of £5,000 will not be awarded.

10. In general, grants will only be awarded to projects which are taking place in the same 
year as application for funds.

Page 6



Appendix 2

5

 
NEW FOREST AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY (CG00140050)

The New Forest and Hampshire County Show is held every year at the end of July (25-27) 
and aims to educate visitors on the ways of the countryside in general. This year's theme 
is “The Best of British”.

The Show brings together many local organisations who promote their work throughout the 
county and who work to educate the public on the ways of the countryside and the working 
of the New Forest such as New Forest Driving for the Disabled, Hampshire Ornithological 
Society, Hampshire Horsewatch and New Forest Commoners Defence Association. 

The New Forest and Hampshire County Show has now become a major event within the 
county and is expected to attract over 75,000 visitors this year.

Total cost: £12,175 (marquees, electric, set up costs and tickets)
Total income: £7,175 (own funds) 
Shortfall: £5,000

APPLICATION ADDRESSED TO: 

Director of Transformation and Governance

AMOUNT OF REQUEST 

£5,000

GRANTS PREVIOUSLY AWARDED BY OTHER EXECUTIVE MEMBERS AND 
CONSIDERATION GIVEN BY OTHER LOCAL MEMBERS 

This budget: Grants have been awarded to this organisation over many years, including 
local members budgets.

COMMENTS OF LOCAL MEMBER 

This is a countywide event

GENERAL COMMENTS 

Director of Transformation and Governance (Communications): The County Council 
will have one corporate stand involving several departments and a further one covering 
Fostering and Adoption.

It is recommended that a grant of £5,000 be awarded to offset the costs of the two County 
Council stands and purchasing tickets.

RECOMMENDATION 

£5,000 to offset the above-mentioned costs 

Page 7



Appendix 2

6

THE PRINCE'S TRUST (CG00014054)

As part of its Get Started Programme, The Princes Trust is seeking a grant of £15,000 for 
a week-long sporting and residential event in the Isle of Wight during August this year for 
10 young people who are not in employment, education or training.

Total Expenditure: £25,117 (prog delivery costs, facilities, admin and support costs) 
Total Income: £10,117 (own funds)
Shortfall: £15,000

APPLICATION ADDRESSED TO: 

Director of Transformation and Governance

AMOUNT OF REQUEST 

£15,000

GRANTS PREVIOUSLY AWARDED BY OTHER EXECUTIVE MEMBERS AND 
CONSIDERATION GIVEN BY OTHER LOCAL MEMBERS 

This budget: A grant of £15,000 was awarded from this budget towards last year’s event.

COMMENTS OF LOCAL MEMBER 

This is a countywide application.

GENERAL COMMENTS 

Director of Transformation and Governance: A grant of £15,000 was awarded last year, 
which enabled 10 young people from New Forest, Fareham, Hart and Eastleigh to benefit.  
From these and 2 young people from the Isle of Wight, 3 went to college, 1 went into a 
part-time employment, 1 went into volunteering, 3 went on other Prince’s Trust courses, 2 
went into full time work and 2 went into a traineeship.

The Trust has been made aware that grants from this budget are usually one-off in nature 
and that there would be no guarantee of a further award. If this was the case, the applicant 
advised that it would fund the programme from its own resources. 

It was also suggested to the Trust that it approach the district/borough councils in 
Hampshire for possible grant aid.

RECOMMENDATION 

£15,000

Page 8



Appendix 2

7

NEW FOREST BIKE PROJECT (NFBP), BRANSGORE     (CG0014082)

New Forest Bike Project, which began in early 2016, is a social enterprise that recycles 
and relocates bicycles in and around Bransgore. NFBP began by undertaking research 
which identified local needs and now delivers affordable and reliable transport to help 
tackle rural isolation and is a means of improving health and wellbeing and providing 
opportunities for volunteering and skills training.
 
The project is seeking grant aid of £5,000 towards its running costs which in turn will 
anticipate recycling 40 bicycles and running 24 monthly teaching sessions, reaching 550 
Hampshire residents.

Total cost: £42,250 (incl wages/NI of sole director, volunteer expenses and office costs)
Total income: £37,000 (own funds) and applications to New Forest NPA and charities
Shortfall: £5,250

APPLICATION ADDRESSED TO: 

Director of Transformation and Governance

AMOUNT OF REQUEST 

£5,250

GRANTS PREVIOUSLY AWARDED BY OTHER EXECUTIVE MEMBERS AND 
CONSIDERATION GIVEN BY OTHER LOCAL MEMBERS 

This budget: Nil

COMMENTS OF LOCAL MEMBER 

Councillor Keith Mans is the local member and supportive of the scheme.

GENERAL COMMENTS 

Director of Transformation and Governance: A grant request was considered at the last 
meeting where it was agreed that the project had very limited community benefit. 

The applicant has reapplied but is seeking a donation towards the project’s running costs, 
which is not usually permitted under the guidance. Again, the applicant has demonstrated 
very little evidence of community benefit. 

Given the local nature of the scheme, it may be more appropriate for the organisation to 
contact the local member for consideration from his devolved grant budget.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Refer to the local member for consideration from his devolved grant budget.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Policy and Resources 

Date: 16 June 2017

Title: Rural Delivery: Rural Grants 

Report From: Director for Culture, Communities and Business Services 

Contact name: Amanda Hull

Tel:   01962 847165 Email: amanda.hull@hants.gov.uk

1. Executive Summary 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to outline a proposal for a revised Rural 

Communities Fund, which will combine four existing Hampshire County 
Council grant schemes currently available to rural communities. 

1.2. The proposal is based on a need to improve the internal efficiency of 
delivering these grants, as well as to improve the experience for rural 
communities seeking grant funding. 

1.3. The proposal includes a request to allocate £50,000 from the Rural Delivery 
budget to support the revised grant scheme.  

2. Contextual information
2.1. The revised County Council Rural Delivery priority actions were agreed by 

Cabinet in March 2014 (report 5684). These include supporting community 
resilience, rural transport, self-help, communications and economic 
development. 

2.2. There are currently four County Council grant schemes that are targeted 
predominately at rural communities. Three have previously been funded by 
the rural delivery budget (a-c) and one is funded by the Countryside Service 
(d). All provide funding towards projects to deliver against the rural delivery 
priority actions.
a) The Community Challenge Fund supports a broad range of community-led 
projects that deliver against any of the Rural Delivery priority actions. It was 
originally established in 2009 and was subsequently re-launched in 2014 to 
reflect the revised priorities of the Rural Delivery Strategy, approved by the 
Executive Member for Policy and Resources at his Decision Day in July 2014 
(report 5940). The scheme is administered by the Department for Culture, 
Communities and Business Services (CCBS), however where applicable 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



Officers from across the County Council are consulted for recommendations 
towards grant applications. 
b) The Flood Alleviation Scheme supports the implementation of small scale 
community led flood alleviation schemes. It delivers against the community 
resilience priority action. The establishment of this scheme was approved by 
the Executive Member for Policy and Resources at his Decision Day in July 
2015 (report 6626), to provide a funding opportunity for those small, locally 
valuable, projects in rural areas that would not necessarily be suitable, or a 
priority, for large scale funding programmes. The scheme is administered by 
CCBS, however Officers from the Department for Environment, Transport and 
Economy (ETE) are closely involved and consulted for recommendations 
towards all grant applications. 
c) The Rural Retailers and Community Enterprises Grant Scheme (previously 
Village Shops Grant Scheme) supports projects to help retailers and 
community enterprises grow, increase their productivity and improve the 
services that are offered to communities in rural areas. It delivers against the 
economic development priority action. The scheme is administered by the 
Economic Development Team (ETE). 
d) The Small Grants Scheme Countryside Access, established in 2005, 
supports projects to improve access to the countryside and delivers against 
the community resilience and self-help priority actions. It is administered and 
funded by the Countryside Service (CCBS) and is delivered in partnership 
with the Hampshire Countryside Access Forum, the statutory Local Access 
Forum for Hampshire (excluding the New Forest and South Downs), advising 
on opportunities to improve access to Hampshire’s countryside.   

2.3. The proposal presented in this report is to combine the four grant schemes 
(a-d), to become the ‘Rural Communities Fund’. This proposal has been 
reviewed by cross-departmental colleagues, Councillor Edward Heron, the 
Assistant to the Executive - Rural Affairs Champion, and Councillor Rob 
Humby, the Executive Member for Environment and Transport, who are 
supportive of the recommendations. 

3. Finance
3.1. The Rural Delivery budget for 2017/18 is £200,000. 
3.2. The unspent balance of funding allocated to support grant schemes in 

previous financial years has been carried forward and is available to support 
applications in 2017/18. This includes:
a) £3,000 balance from the Community Challenge Fund budget, from the 
£50,000 approved by the Executive Member for Policy and Resources at his 
Decision Day in July 2014 (report 5940).
b) £19,000 balance from the Flood Alleviation Scheme budget, from the 
£65,000 approved by the Executive Member for Policy and Resources at his 
Decision Day in July 2015 (report 6626). 
c) £57,000 balance from the Rural Retailers and Community Enterprises 
Grant Scheme budget, from the £100,000 approved by the Executive Member 

Page 12



for Policy and Resources at his Decision Days in July 2014 (report 5940) and 
July 2015 (report 6626). This large underspend is in part due to additional 
funding held by the Economic Development Team, also being available to 
support applications to this scheme up to the end of 2016/17. 

3.3. The Countryside Service is continuing to support the Countryside Access 
Scheme from its own budget with a contribution of £18,000 for 2017/18.  

3.4. An additional £50,000 contribution from the rural delivery budget 2017/18 is 
requested towards the proposal for a combined Rural Communities Fund (see 
5.8 for a proposed breakdown of this contribution). 

4. Rural grants review
Context

4.1. A series of five parish and town council consultation workshops, held across 
the county during September 2016, revealed there is a general willingness to 
take on greater responsibilities but there was concern over capacity, resource 
and funding. Resulting from the workshops it was acknowledged that the 
County Council could do more to improve the accessibility to grants and 
funding by simplifying the approach and the process. As there are currently 
four County Council grant schemes aimed predominately at rural communities 
(see 2.2), combining these four grants schemes will assist in achieving this.  
As the County Council faces further cuts, there are also recognised benefits 
of a combined scheme in meeting corporate objectives, especially through its 
potential to support the culture of self-help and promote collaborative working.

4.2. As part of a review of the Community Challenge Fund in 2016, consultation 
with the Hampshire Association of Local Councils and Action Hampshire 
confirmed that there is still a demand for funding for community projects in 
rural areas and of the potential benefits of the scheme in helping to deliver 
this.
Current performance

4.3. In the past two years the four grant schemes have allocated approximately 
£250,000 to 97 different projects, of which 59 projects (receiving 
approximately £101,500) have been led by town or parish councils. A 
founding principle of these schemes has been to attract external investment 
and the match funding secured towards the 97 projects funded has been 
approximately £454,000, plus volunteer hours and in-kind support. See 
Appendix A for a summary of the projects supported and funding allocated for 
each grant scheme in 2015/16 and 2016/17.   

4.4. Whilst up-take of most schemes has been limited in the past two years, there 
has been a renewed interest, in particular in the Rural Retailers and 
Community Enterprises Grant Scheme and the Flood Alleviation Scheme, 
and there are a number of potential applications lined up.

4.5. The Small Grants Scheme Countryside Access has seen a steady influx of 
applications in the past two years and there is a continued demand. To 
support this, the Countryside Service has increased its efforts to work more 
closely with parish councils, including a pilot project funded by the rural 

Page 13



delivery budget in 2016 (report 7747). This delivered six workshops for parish 
councils and user groups and was attended by 185 people, of which 66 
signed up to be Path Wardens. The Countryside Service is also keen to 
continue its support for countryside access grants to meet Countryside 
Access Plan objectives and a more sustainably managed rights of way 
network in the future. Despite this, the current scheme demands an 
unsustainable level of officer time, largely due to the application and decision 
making process. There are additional pressures to meet savings targets and 
the future of the scheme would be uncertain if steps were not taken to 
consider alternative delivery options.   

4.6. The current practice of managing the schemes separately is inefficient and 
potentially confusing for applicants. All schemes are promoted through the 
same channels but promotion is done independently and contact information 
and closing dates are different for each scheme. There is also a degree of 
overlap between the schemes, primarily due to the broad scope of the 
Community Challenge Fund. Combining the schemes will eliminate confusion 
and provide a clearer offer for potential applicants. 

4.7. The current decision making processes for the schemes are varied and for 
some schemes overly convoluted. Applications to the Community Challenge 
Fund and Flood Alleviation Scheme are presented to the Assistant to the 
Executive - Rural Affairs Champion for initial review and final approval is then 
sought via a scheduled Executive Member for Policy and Resources Decision 
Day. Applications to the Rural Retailers and Community Enterprise Grant 
Scheme are considered by the Assistant to the Executive - Rural Affairs 
Champion and the Assistant Director Economic Development.  Applications to 
the Small Grant Scheme are presented at scheduled meetings to an 
independent panel of members from the Local Access Forums for Hampshire 
and the New Forest.  

5. Funding proposal – Rural Communities Fund
5.1. It is proposed that the four grant schemes outlined above (see 2.2.) should be 

combined and presented as the ‘Rural Communities Fund’. This will help 
provide a clear message to potential applicants about the audience. Among 
the potential applicants will be town and parish councils and the combined 
scheme will provide an opportunity to strengthen the County Councils 
relationship with them and encourage joint initiatives.   

5.2. The priorities of the scheme will be to ‘build community resilience and 
encourage self-help’. Applications will be welcomed to support three specific 
themes (rural retailers and community enterprises, community-led flood 
alleviation, countryside access), as well as general projects or initiatives 
supporting the scheme priorities. See Appendix B for the proposed scheme 
information. 

5.3. The combined scheme will be administered by CCBS and applications 
managed via the corporate grants database. Relevant Officers from across 
the County Council will be consulted for recommendations on applications 
when applicable. 

Page 14



5.4. To help improve the experience for customers and manage their 
expectations, the combined scheme will have one point of initial contact, 
shared promotion, standard closing dates across all themes, standard criteria 
and a standard application and decision making process. In addition to the 
standard scheme information, there will also be some step-by step guidance 
to address the different scheme themes.

5.5. To improve the efficiency of the decision making process, it is proposed that 
decisions on grant applications up to £5,000, should be delegated to the 
Assistant Director for Culture and Heritage, in consultation with the Assistant 
to the Executive - Rural Affairs Champion. For these smaller scale grants it is 
anticipated that this will reduce the Officer time involved in completing this 
process and reduce the waiting times for applicants in finding out the outcome 
of their grant application. Grant applications for funding over £5,000 will be 
presented for approval at a scheduled Executive Member for Policy and 
Resources Decision Day. 

5.6. This will replace the current process in place for the Community Challenge 
Fund and Flood Alleviation Grant, whereby a report is submitted to the 
Executive Member for Policy and Resources for consideration at a scheduled 
Decision Day for all applications over £1,000. It is however proposed that 
following the final round of funding each year all grants awarded will be 
reported retrospectively to the Executive Member for Policy and Resources 
for information.   

5.7. As the Local Access Forum is currently involved in the decision making 
process for the Small Grants Scheme Countryside Access, it is proposed that 
countryside access applications will still be shared with agreed members of 
the Forum for comment, and any comments submitted will be included in the 
recommendation to the appropriate decision maker (see 5.5). As is current 
practice, it is also anticipated that a report of successful countryside access 
grant applications will be provided to the Forum at its quarterly meeting. 

5.8. To support the scheme it is proposed that £50,000 is allocated from the Rural 
Delivery budget, to be used only when the existing budgets allocated for the 
themes are exhausted (see 3.2 and 3.3). This will include:
a) A maximum allocation of £18,000 to support the Countryside Access theme 
(to match the Countryside Service allocation), in recognition of its great 
contribution towards the overall rural priority actions of promoting community 
resilience and a culture of self-help.
b) A maximum allocation of £32,000 to support general projects or initiatives 
supporting the scheme priorities and the Flood Alleviation theme.   
c) Due to the extent of the existing budget, it is not anticipated that this 
funding will be used to support the Rural Retailer and Community Enterprise 
theme. 

5.9. It is proposed that the new ‘Rural Communities Fund’ is launched by the end 
of June 2017.  This will include promotion via a press release, social media 
and joint communications with the Hampshire Association of Local Councils 
and Action Hampshire. 

Page 15



6. Recommendations
It is recommended that the Executive Member for Policy and Resources: 

6.1. Approves the proposal to establish a Rural Communities Fund, to open in 
June 2017, which will combine four existing grant schemes offered by the 
County Council to rural communities (as set out in paragraph 5 of this report). 

6.2. Approves the proposal to delegate Rural Communities Fund grant decisions, 
up to £5,000, to the Assistant Director for Culture and Heritage in consultation 
with the Assistant to the Executive - Rural Affairs Champion.  

6.3. Approves the allocation of £50,000 from the Rural Delivery budget to support 
the Rural Communities Fund.  

Page 16



APPENDIX A

Rural grant scheme funding summary 2015/16-2016/17

. 

Grant scheme Projects 
supported 
2015/16

Projects 
supported 
2016/17

Amount 
awarded

Match 
funding

Example projects

Community 
Challenge

8 5 £46,650 £147,080 IT help sessions at the weekly market; helping residents 
identify heat loss hot spots; helping community buildings 
improve energy efficiency; dementia friendly rural 
communities. 

Flood Alleviation 3 3 £47,750 £46,150 Works to improve drainage; riverbed regrading; 
catchment modelling; feasibility studies.   

Rural Retailers & 
Community 
Enterprises 

5 2 £72,443 £170,705 The establishment of a shop in the village hall; 
increasing services such as food to go; internal and 
external shop improvements e.g. to modernise and 
make best use of space; new equipment such as chillers 
and freezers to increase product offers.

Countryside 
Access

35 36 £83,369 £89,864 Path surfacing; replacing stiles with gates; installation of 
boardwalks and bridges; map boards and leaflets to 
promote countryside access.

Total 51 46 £250,212 £453,799

P
age 17



APPENDIX B

Rural Communities Fund – scheme information

The Rural Communities Fund supports Parish Councils, groups and organisations in rural 
Hampshire and small market towns. The priorities of the scheme are to build community resilience 
and encourage self-help. 

Applications are welcome to support three specific themes as well as general projects or initiatives 
supporting the scheme priorities. 

 Rural retailers and community enterprises – we want to help them grow, increase their 
productivity and ultimately improve the services that are offered to communities in rural areas. 

 Community-led flood alleviation – we want to help rural communities deliver solutions to 
flooding in their local areas to benefit both people and property.      

 Countryside access – we want to help communities deliver improvements to their local 
access network.  

 Other – we are keen to support other projects or initiatives that will help build community 
resilience and/or encourage self-help in rural areas e.g. supporting vulnerable and older 
people; supporting innovative transport solutions to access services. Contact us to discuss 
your project ideas before making an application and we can advise if it will be eligible. 

When to apply

Applications for funding up to £5,000: 

Accepted throughout the year and decisions will be made within eight weeks of receiving a 
completed application.  

Applications for funding over £5,000:   

Application deadline Decision by

14 July 2017 19 October 2017

1 September 2017 5 December 2017

1 December 2017 8 March 2018

Funding criteria
Applications can be made for over £1,000, typically up to a maximum of £5,000. Larger grants are 
available to support applications for community-led flood alleviation schemes and rural retailer and 
community enterprise schemes (typically up to £10,000).

Awards may be for £1,000 or less if this is felt to be appropriate. Organisations seeking funding of 
£500 or less are recommended to look at County Councillor Grants. 

Applicants must have match funding in place from other (non-Hampshire County Council) 
sources. An element of this match funding can be ‘in-kind’ (e.g. through volunteer time). Any in-
kind contributions must be accounted for as part of the total cost of the project/activity, for example 
the total cost is made up of expenditure (e.g. materials, contractors) and the value of in-kind 
contributions. 

 Applicants for rural retailer and community enterprise schemes must contribute a 
minimum of 50% of total eligible costs. For commercial businesses, the match funding cannot 
be sourced from any other grant making authority. For community enterprises, the match 
funding can be sourced from other grants. 

Page 18

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/grants/county-councillor-grants.htm


APPENDIX B

 Applicants for countryside access schemes must contribute a minimum of 50% of total 
eligible costs. In kind contributions can be made up of volunteer labour (excluding 
Community Service Payback Teams) and/or contributions from landowners.  

 Applications for community-led flood alleviation schemes and all other community projects 
must include some match funding from district, town or parish councils. 

Grant criteria and eligibility
We will fund applications which meet all of the following criteria. It is a competitive process, so 
grants will be approved by County Councillors on their merits. 

 Projects/activities must deliver measurable results against the priorities of the Fund.  

 The project/activity must take place in rural Hampshire, a small market town, or directly benefit 
rural communities.

 Applications must have support from the local community and Parish/Town Council.

 Applicants must have a clear management structure within its constitution or suitable 
governance/terms of reference. 

 Applicants must be able to demonstrate that without the support from Hampshire County 
Council the project/activity would not be able to proceed at all or to the extent outlined in the 
application. 

 Applicants with significant funds in place or higher levels of reserves must demonstrate why 
funding from Hampshire County Council is needed. 

 Applications must include a project plan or business plan (where applicable). 

 If the application is successful, it is expected that you will have a plan to continue the 
project/activity after the end of the funding period (where applicable). 

 Successful applicants must provide appropriate reporting and/or monitoring for their 
projects/activities.

 Successful applicants must acknowledge the support of Hampshire County Council in all 
publicity and media coverage relating to the project, and in the organisation’s next annual 
audited statement of accounts.

 Applicants must have appropriate policies, procedures and insurance in place.  

 Applications for rural retailer and community enterprise schemes must:  
o demonstrate how they will grow their business and provide value for money;
o show how they will enhance the local community; 
o prove that they are not in direct competition with another business in the same village;
o be in an area/village with a population of less than 5,000 residents.

 Applications for community-led flood alleviation schemes must: 
o demonstrate the benefit to people and property, without any increase in risk 

elsewhere; 
o have the necessary consents from the Environment Agency and Hampshire County 

Council. 

 Applications for countryside access schemes must: 
o deliver improvements identified in the Countryside Access Plan; 
o demonstrate a long term benefit to the local community and access network based on 

an existing local need.    
o adhere to the detailed scheme criteria.   

Page 19



APPENDIX B

Financial eligibility
Organisations will not normally be eligible for grants where they hold unallocated reserves in 
excess of one year’s running costs. In cases where reserves held exceed this level, a reduced 
level of funding may be agreed. All charitable organisations are expected to have an agreed 
reserves policy that addresses their financial risk. 

What we can fund

If you are applying for a rural retailer and community enterprise grant, or a countryside access 
grant please download the scheme specific guidance below to find out more about the eligible 
activities and any additional criteria. 

Rural retailers and community enterprises – scheme guidance

Countryside access – scheme guidance

What we can't fund
 Projects that receive funding from other Hampshire County Council sources (except for County 

Councillor grants). 

 Individuals 

 Profit making events/activities (with the exception of applications for rural retailer and 
community enterprise schemes)

 Projects or activities solely within the unitary authority areas of Portsmouth City Council and 
Southampton City Council.

 Non-constituted organisations (though grants via parish councils may be possible instead). 

 Projects/work that has already been carried out, you must apply for a grant and receive an 
offer from us before starting any work or making any purchases.

 General/core running costs of an organisation

 Rural retailer and community enterprise schemes will not fund:
o Like for like replacement equipment or any general maintenance. We will only fund 

items that will add new value to the business/enterprise. 
o Standard computer equipment 
o Businesses within population areas of more than 5,000 residents. Priority will be given 

to smaller settlements with limited services. 
o Non-independent commercial organisations (with more than one outlet) 

 Countryside access schemes will not fund:
o Works/projects that are primarily for nature conservation, the main element of the 

project must be for access improvements. 
o Fencing projects or works on recreation grounds, unless the land is also recorded as a 

right of way or open access land. 
o The repair or replacement of stiles, although applications to replace stiles with gates 

are strongly supported.
o Work to paved/tarmaced paths
o Picnic benches
o Notice boards
o Dog bins 

Page 20



Integral Appendix A

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Corporate Strategy
Hampshire safer and more secure for all:    Yes

Maximising well-being: Yes

Enhancing our quality of place: Yes

Other Significant Links
Links to previous Member decisions:
Title Reference Date
Rural Delivery Strategy funding proposals 7747 September 2016
Rural Delivery Strategy funding proposals 6626 July 2015
Rural Delivery Strategy funding proposals 5940 July 2014
Hampshire County Council’s Rural Delivery
Strategy

5684 March 2014

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 21



Integral Appendix: B

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS:

1. Equality Duty
1.1. The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 

(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 

prohibited under the Act;
 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those 
who do not share it;

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
a)  The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 

relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;
b)  Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
c)  Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 

public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low.

1.2. Equalities Impact Assessment:
a) The proposals are expected to have a high positive impact on people living in 

rural areas. No negative impacts are anticipated.
b) Revised priorities for the County Council’s Rural Delivery Strategy were 

agreed by Cabinet in March 2014 (report 5684) with priority actions 
supporting community resilience, challenging rural isolation and loneliness, 
rural transport, self-help, communications, and economic development. An 
equality impact assessment of specific projects or funding requests is 
requested when necessary.

2. Impact on Crime and Disorder:
2.1. Support for more vulnerable groups and the infrastructure and networks to 

deliver it will reduce isolation and exposure to criminal acts. More vibrant and 
active communities are likely to suffer less crime and anti-social behaviour.

3. Climate Change:
3.1. How does what is being proposed impact on our carbon footprint / energy 

consumption? Putting effective flood alleviation measures in place would 
reduce the amount of energy required to alleviate flooding emergencies 
through measures such as pumping of flood water and reduce the resources 
needed for recovery after an event. 

3.2. How does what is being proposed consider the need to adapt to climate 
change, and be resilient to its longer term impacts? The severity and 
frequency of extreme weather events that often cause flooding is linked to the 
changing climate. Initiatives to alleviate flooding will take this into account. 
The initiatives proposed also support the culture of self-help and community 
resilience in rural areas.

Page 22



1

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Executive Decision Record

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Policy and Resources

Date of Decision: 16 June 2017

Decision Title: Appointments to Statutory Joint Committees and Outside 
Bodies 

Report From: Director of Transformation and Governance - Corporate 
Services 

Contact name: Louise Pickford 

Tel: 01962 847355 Email: louise.pickford@hants.gov.uk

 
1. The Decision (PROPOSED): 

a) That the Executive Member for Policy and Resources be requested to make 
appointments to those Statutory Joint Committees and outside bodies shown 
below. The term of office to expire in May 2021 (unless otherwise stated).

Name of Body Previous representatives Appointments 

Manydown, Basingstoke 
JMC (4)

Councillors Keith 
Chapman, Brian Gurden, 
Mel Kendal and Elaine Still

Basingstoke Canal (4) 
(subject to referral from 
Executive Member for 
Culture, Recreation and 
Countryside) 

Project Integra Strategic 
Board (1)

Executive Member for 
Economy, Transport and 
Environment (currently 
Councillor Rob Humby)

Solent Transport Joint 
Committee (1)

Executive Member for 
Economy, Transport and 
Environment (currently 
Councillor Rob Humby)

Page 23

Agenda Item 3

mailto:louise.pickford@hants.gov.uk


2

Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Local Government 
Association (HIOWLGA) 
(4 + 2 deputies)

Councillors: 
Mel Kendal, Keith Mans, 
Roy Perry and vacancy

Alan Rice (dep)
Adrian Collett (dep)

Hampshire Association of 
Local Councils (1)

NB: Appointment until 
March 2018 when review of 
annual grant is due

Councillor Edward Heron

Solent Sea Rescue 
Organisation (1)

Councillor Peter Edgar Transfer to Executive 
Member for Public Health

Solent Local Enterprise 
Partnership (1)

NB: Due to the status of the 
Solent LEP as a private 
limited company, no formal 
reappointment is required. 
If a new nominee is put 
forward, their appointment 
would be subject to the 
normal election process of 
Directors for the Solent 
LEP 

Councillor Keith Mans

Southern England Local 
Partners (1 + 1 deputy)

Councillors Keith Mans
Roy Perry (dep)

Southern Water 
Stakeholder Panel (1)

Councillor Rob Humby

** N.B  in regard to the Enterprise M3 Local Enterprise Partnership, Councillor Keith 
Mans is the current County Council appointment and the LEP has confirmed the term 
is until July 2019. 

b) That the Executive Member notes:

i. That the Hanson Concrete Charitable Trust has been disbanded and a 
County Council appointment is no longer required 

Page 24



3

ii. That the following outside bodies are currently under review, the outcome 
of which will be reported to a future Decision Day.

2.   Reason for the decision:

i. To maintain County Council representation on committees and bodies within 
the community.

ii. To allow for a review to be undertaken on outside bodies within this portfolio. 

3. Other options considered and rejected:

3.1. Not to make appointments which would cease County Council representation. 

4. Conflicts of interest:

4.1. Conflicts of interest declared by the decision-maker: None

Name of Body Comments

Hanson Concrete 
Charitable Trust

Disbanded – appointment no longer 
required

Bishop’s Waltham Town 
Team (1)

Hampshire Alliance for 
Rural Affordable Housing 
(1)

Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Community 
Foundation Board (1 
Trustee)

Hampshire Community 
Fund Advisory Board (1)

Hampshire Rural Forum (1)

Joint Authorities Gypsy 
and Traveller Panel (1 + 1 
deputy)

Tadley and District 
Citizen's Advice Bureau 
(CAB) Trustee Board (1)

Page 25



4

4.2. Conflicts of interest declared by other Executive Members consulted: 

5. Dispensation granted by the Conduct Advisory Panel: none. 

6. Reason(s) for the matter being dealt with if urgent: not applicable.

7. Statement from the Decision Maker: 

Approved by:

--------------------------------------------------               Date: 16 June 2017
Executive Member for Policy and Resources 
Councillor Roy Perry

Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Grants to Voluntary Organisations and Other Bodies
	2 Rural Delivery: Rural Grants
	3 Appointments to Statutory Joint Committees and Outside Bodies
	5 Schedule of Routine Transactions
	Routine Transactions Exempt Plan


